STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF CURRY
CITY OF TEXICO
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING
01/16/2024

The Texico City Council met in a regular session on Tuesday, January 16, 2024, at 6:30 p.m. at Texico
Senior Citizens Building in full compliance with the laws of the State of New Mexico and ordinances and
resolutions of said City with the following members present:

Mayor-Pro Tem

Council Members Oran Jay Autrey
Max Carter
Sharon Askew
Patricia Natividad

Also Present Connie S. Harrison, City Clerk
Karla Barela, Utility Clerk
Elpidia Solis, Deputy City Clerk
Missy Peacock, Finance
Doug Bowman, Police Chief
Marion Rutter, City Attorney
Michael Steininger, DFA (attended by telephone)
Billy McCoy, Texico Volunteer Assistant Fire Chief
Kenneth Sena, Public Works
Mark Huerta, EPCOR
Rob Pomper, Stateline Tribune
Marcia Leavell
Kathy Bullington
Deborah Autrey
Eliaser Natividad
Virginia Loera
Felix Loera
Lydia Correa
Dusty Casey

Invocation was given by a citizen, Kathy Bullington.

A roll call was given for those council members present:

Max Carter Present
Oran Jay Autrey Present
Sharon Askew Present
Patricia Natividad Present

Councilman Autrey made a motion to approve the regular meeting minutes of 12/12/23 and it was
seconded by Councilwoman Natividad seconded. Motion passed 4-0




— N

Council member Autrey maad. . motion to elect Councilman Carter as the .. .w Mayor Pro-Tem for 2024.
Councilwoman Askew seconded the motion and the motion passed 3-0. Max Carter is the Mayor Pro-
Tem for the year 2024.

OLD BUSINESS:

Mayor Pro-Tem Carter asked if those submitting their Letter of Interest for Mayor would like to speak.
Each of the three, Kathy Bullington, Deborah Autrey and Virginia Loera spoke on their behalf giving a
brief statement of what experience they have and why they would like to be the Mayor of Texico.

Mayor Pro-Tem Carter asked if anyone would like to give public comment on those who submitted their
Letters of Interest, none being said, he stated that he would like to say something. Mr. Carter stated
that the City of Texico was under stress, and it must be someone who has an interest with the city in
knowing what the city is going through and this needs to be taken in consideration when nominating for
the position. Councilwoman Natividad made a motion to elect Deborah Autrey as the Mayor,
Councilwoman Askew seconded the motion. A roll call vote was called:

Mayor Pro-Tem Carter NO
Councilwoman Askew YES
Councilman Autrey Abstain
Councilwoman Natividad YES

It was stated by City Attorney, Marion Rutter, that the vote passes, and Deborah Autrey is the appointed
Mayor. Ms. Harrison stated that she does have an email to the County Clerk, Annie Hogland, to see
when she is available to perform the swearing-in of the Mayor and Municipal Judge.

Mr. Carter stated that everything is on hold with ENMWUA.

Mark Huerta with EPCOR stated that EPCOR is working on a cost estimate for the Texico lateral.
Councilman Carter asked for a timeline and Mr. Huerta stated that he did not have one and would try to
get one for the council tomorrow, Wednesday, January 17, 2024. EPCOR has been made aware that the
Public Works Supervisor for the City of Texico, Kenneth Sena, has achieved his Wastewater 2
Certification. Mr. Huerta stated he believes that Mr. Sena would be able to operate the Wastewater
System with this certification. He expressed that EPCOR is open to the fact that Mr. Sena would now
take over the Wastewater System, their only concern is to make sure that Mr. Sena is in the right spot
and work with EPCOR for a month to ensure that Texico is in Environmental Compliance with our
certification. The administrative end is harder than the physical part in maintaining the Wastewater
System. Mr. Carter asked when they would like to begin working with Mr. Sena. Mr. Huerta stated he
would like to have the meeting, an informal one, sit down and see what the City of Texico’s thoughts are
moving forward. Mr. Rutter asked if the timeline could be discussed that Mr. Carter had asked about
regarding the Texico lateral and Mr. Huerta stated he thought that it could accommodate that.

Chief Bowman stated that the city did have another applicant with their wastewater certification and
due to the holidays and new council members coming on he has not yet been interviewed for the
position. This would make two certified employees work on the wastewater system and as discussed
earlier Texico would like to take the wastewater system back over if and when possible.

Mr. Huerta stated that EPCOR just wants to make sure the transition is done correctly so they do not
have to keep stepping in.

On the waterside everything is looking good. On average we are at 68,000 gallons per day. The cities
two highest days in the last four months that EPCOR has been tracking Texico, were October 22, 2023,
with 103,000 gallons of water used, which is 79% of pumping capacity and in November 115,000 gallons
of water used, which is 80% of pumping capacity. When all five (5) wells are at pumping capacity they
can pump 130,000 gallons a day. Everything looks good up to now.




re— A
EPCOR has been reviewing tt. _.ty’s Drought Ordinance. Gradually decre.. and continue monitoring
the delivery daily, plug into a spread sheet and track it, an example would be if the capacity levels reach
to 85% for 3 consecutive days we would be notified by EPCOR to move to Stage 2, if the capacity levels
reach to 95% for 5 consecutive days we would be notified by EPCOR to move to Stage 5. EPCOR is
smaller in the winter months, and we will really know more once the summer months hit, and they have
12 months data. Councilman Carter asked about an incident that happened and Mr. Huerta stated that
an air relief valve on some exterior piping coming out of the Tower Well that froze. He stated that if
EPCOR is still here next winter, they are going to take precautions to make sure it does not happen
again.

Ms. Barela stated that meter readings were back on track and residents can expect their billing to be
back on track as well in the next couple of months.

Deborah Autrey asked Mr. Huerta regarding the staging. Mr. Huerta stated EPCOR will abide by Texico’s
ordinance on staging.

NEW BUSINESS:

Resignation of Municipal Judge. Mr. Rutter stated Ms. Solis emailed him the resignation letter of Mr.
Grussendorf and that the City of Texico has an Ordinance, number 261 that upon the vacancy of the
Judge, it is to be filled by appointment by the mayor with the advice of the Council until the next regular
municipal election. Mayor Pro-Tem Carter asked if we did have the letter of resignation and Mr. Rutter
deferred to Ms. Solis who stated yes, we did have it.

Mayor Pro-Tem Carter asked if there were any nominations for the position of Municipal Judge.
Councilman Autrey nominated Virginia Loera and Councilwoman Natividad seconded the motion. Mr.
Rutter, the city attorney, asked Ms. Loera how long she worked for the Magistrate Court in Clovis. Ms.
Loera stated for 26 years working under ten different judges. She supervised ten clerks and has
attended several trainings. Also, working in other municipalities helping when they were shorthanded.
Councilman Autrey asked Ms. Loera if she was interested in the position of Municipal Judge, and she
answered that she feels she can serve. A roll call was called:

Mayor Pro-Tem Carter Yes
Councilman Autrey Yes
Councilwoman Askew Yes
Councilwoman Natividad Yes

Ms. Loera thanked the council for their confidence.

Ms. Loera asked if this would affect her PERA and both Ms. Harrison and Ms. Peacock stated yes it
would. Ms. Harrison recommended that Ms. Loera contact PERA to verify. Michael Steininger with DFA
who was attending by phone stated that he did not think it would affect her PERA, Ms. Harrison stated
that she would have Ms. Loera call and verify with PERA.

FINANCE:

Ms. Harrison stated to the council that she was passing through the checks that had been paid and that
one of the council members would need to be put on the signature card. She apologized that she was
not able to print the bank statement balances due to working on another project for the council.

Ms. Harrison addressed the council regarding the medical insurance going up 10% effective January 01,
2024. She passed out a spreadsheet which showed what each of the employees paid every two weeks
as well as what the city pays every two weeks both for 2023 and 2024.

She has pulled a couple of contracts per Michael Steininger and auditor, Pam Rice, one of which is PCC
with the Fire Department and noted that the mayor is not the one who signed the contract as it was




——— P
Doug Scioli. She has given th. . Mr. Rutter for his review. She stated tha. .. Rutter has said that he
has a contract with Republic Services — there is not a copy on file in Texico City Hall. Ms. Harrison stated
to the council that the city has had several issues lately with Republic from not showing up to remove
trash to not calling the city to let them know they would not be doing any pickups.

Taxes — Ms. Harrison stated that per IRS rules taxes will need to begin coming out of the ambulance
drivers and Elected Officials pay checks. This will begin with the upcoming payroll ending 01/20/2024.

Cell Phones — Ms. Harrison stated that some employees were concerned about their cell phone number
being given out to people for them to be able to call the employee with concerns. If something was to
happen or come up, per IPRA (Inspection of Public Records) their phone could be confiscated, and
personal information could be taken and used. This pertains to the governing body as well if
constituents are calling them, as stated by Mr. Steininger. Most Municipalities and Counties pay a
stipend of $35.00 a pay period or they purchase cell phones for the employees. Councilman Autrey
stated that in the past the city was told by their auditor they could not do this as it would be shown as
income for the employee. Mr. Rutter, the city attorney, stated according to IRS this was considered a
benefit to the employee by giving them a phone.

Mr. Steininger stated that this was no longer an issue. Councilman Autrey stated to let the office look
into this further and get a price to bring back to the council.

Ms. Harrison stated that she was bringing this to the council for informational purposes only and that
she would be placing this on the next agenda and that she had contacted T-Mobile under the previous
Mayors request and would reach out to them again.

Mr. Steininger with DFA attended the meeting telephonically, introduced himself to the two new council
members and gave them his background. He thanked the former governing body for inviting DFA to
Texico to help address the issues. He is to address the following while here:

1. Address the 2021 audit findings

2. Financial/Budget Report

3. Rules and regulations/Policies and Procedures

4. Accounting system for the Finance Department
He clarified that after being in Texico for a week, his statement was premature on not needing to stop
using QuickBooks. The way QuickBooks is currently structured in Texico’s system, it would be ineffective
and time consuming to try and break it apart. He is respectfully retracting his original statement and
supports going with Tyler Technology/Encode 10, it is a good system. He has spoken with Ms. Peacock
about his concerns to let Tyler only install and setup, do not let them do the software conversion. Pick a
day and time to shut off the old software and transfer the balances over, start fresh the next day on the
new software. Texico does have to keep access to the old software until the audit is complete.
He has begun working on bank statements. One of the audit findings is that no one has been updating
QuickBooks to the result of the most current audit. Pam Rice, Texico’s auditor, has asked him not to do
this due to withing the General Fund in Quickbooks, Texico has three or four other funds amongst it.
Ms. Rice is concerned if it is updated to the 2021 audit, she will lose the ability to get a proper roll
forward.

Mr. Steininger met with Wesley Billingsley, Director of Local Government Division with DFA, to use DFA’s
relationship with the State Auditor to expedite processing the 2022 audit once it has been submitted so
DFA can use the 2022 audit as a beginning place to work from. He is currently working on the
Enterprise, Ambulance, Fire and General funds and will continue to do so next week when he is back in
Texico. He has gone thru his files to see what policies and procedures that he already has that can be
modified once he has a better understanding of Texico’s procedures. He has not seen any immediate
issues with the day-to-day activities. Ms. Harrison has already addressed his concern with the payroll
payments made to the governing body and EMS and the IRS rules.




_— P i

Mr. Steininger feels that the _ .erning body has been left out of importa:. .ecision making, an example
of this is the signing of the contract to the ambulance billing company that Doug Scioli, former Fire Chief
signed. Nobody other than the governing body has legal authority to sign anything that binds
government unless the governing body delegates someone to do so. Governing body’s are the only one
as Board of Finance to set rates and conditions under which employees or volunteers are paid, either
salary or stipend. Ms. Harrison stated that she and Chief Queener would be working together to put
together a payment schedule on ambulance transfers. Currently they are getting One dollar and no/100
($1.00) per mile. Mr. Steininger reiterated that he feels the governing body is historically being left out
of the decision making process. The mayor does not have unilateral authority.

DFA was given the task to correct items as they see them. They are an oversight agency, not an
investigative agency and cannot penalize for wrong doing, they will keep the governing body advised of
anything that comes across that needs to be corrected.

Mayor Pro-Tem Max Carter stated to Mr. Steininger that they are glad he is here and helping us out —it’s
a real need. Thank you.

Mr. Steininger stated thank you and that beginning February things should be more stable with his wife
and he would be in Texico for two weeks at a time and back home for one week.

Ms. Harrison stated that Pam Rice had been working on the 2022 audit since before Christmas and has
found several issues regarding monies in the Public Works fund that have been transferred in and out
and doesn’t seem to be in the correct account. Ms. Harrison stated that the office is working together
with Mr. Steininger and Ms. Rice to get this cleaned up.

Finance Software — Ms. Peacock updated the council on the software for the Finance Department. She
has been able to bring the costs down from $109,000 to $86,090. Ms. Autrey asked what the difference
was and Ms. Peacock stated it was different discounts she was able to take advantage of, such as joining
their free services and receiving a 20% discount. She also removed some of the systems she felt weren’t
needed. A lot of the conversion can be done by the City of Texico. Once Mr. Steininger has completed
his task there will be true and balanced numbers to work with. Ms. Peacock stated that she did keep
some of the training for those not familiar with the programs and that Tyler has a training that can be
accessed online anytime. The annual cost will be $25,919. We do currently pay annual fees for at least
five (5) different software programs.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

A motion was made by Councilwoman Askew and seconded by Councilwoman Natividad to move into
Executive Sessions for the discussion of limited litigation matters involving personnel issues. Motion
passed 3-0

A motion to come out of Executive Session by Councilwoman Natividad and seconded by Councilwoman
Askew at 7:59 p.m.

Action resulting from the Executive Session was litigation per Mr. Rutter, City Attorney

ACTION ITEMS:

Ms. Harrison presented Resolution 2024-01. Councilman Autrey stated that the date was incorrect on
page one and on the last page. Ms. Harrison stated she would need to put Councilman Carter’s name in
as Mayor Pro-Tem. Ms. Harrison pointed out that there could only be one meeting in the month of
December due to Christmas Eve and Christmas Day both being holidays. Councilman Autrey stated that
he felt that is how it usually has been. Councilman Autrey made a motion to approve Resolution 2024-01
and seconded by Councilwoman Askew, motion passed 4-0




Ms. Harrison stated that a council member needed to be added to the signature cards and asked who
would like to be the one and she knew that Councilman Autrey did not want to be on the signature
cards. Councilwoman Natividad stated that due to her teaching in Bovina it would be difficult,
Councilman Carter stated he did not want to be on them, and Ms. Harrison asked Councilwoman Askew
if she would. Councilwoman Askew said yes. A motion was made by Councilwoman Askew to approve
her being added to the signature cards and it was seconded by Councilman Autrey. Motion passed 4-0

Approval of the Finance Software Mayor Pro-Tem Carter asked what the established value of the
software to be considered, Mr. Rutter stated it was $86,090.00. Ms. Deborah Autrey asked when the
recurring fee would begin. Ms. Peacock stated it would begin in 2025. Mayor Pro-Tem Carter asked if
there was any more discussion. Councilman Autrey asked that this be tabled again until they knew
exactly where the monies were coming from. Mayor Pro-Tem asked what kind of a delay this would
cause if it was to be tabled. Ms. Harrison stated that as soon as Mr. Steininger and Ms. Rice complete
their help with the cleanup, we would be able to start on the quarter as Mr. Steininger advised us to. If
waiting it would take us to mid-year before we could begin with the new software, which Ms. Harrison
stated meant putting more trash into the trash we already have. Ms. Deborah Autrey asked about the
grant money from the Small Assistance Grant and what had been spent with these monies. Ms. Harrison
stated she knew that they had purchased a new pickup for Public Works but did not know what else the
monies had been spent on. She knows it was always deposited into Public Works and it looks like it
stayed in that account.

Once we get the audits cleaned up the world is open to us to be able to apply for grants. Ms. Peacock
stated that once we get the new software program, we can print out the P & L’s, balance sheets so when
the auditor comes in, we have clean information. Ms. Harrison stated that it is not just Ms. Pam Rice
who has recommended getting away from QuickBooks, she noted six (6) times other audit firms had
made the same recommendation.

Councilwoman Natividad made a motion to approve the new finance program and Mayor Pro-Tem
Carter seconded it, motion passed 3-0.

REPORTS OF PERSONNEL AND DEPARTMENTS:

Chief Bowman stated that he and Mr. Sena had been doing a lot of dog catching. Ms. Harrison stated
that Texico had just received a statement from the City of Clovis for $173.00. Councilwoman Askew
asked which side of town they had caught more dogs and Chief Bowman stated it was equal and that
they were getting them coming from Farwell too. Councilwoman Askew said she had seen them coming
across from Farwell. She asked if Texico had a Dog Catcher and Chief Bowman stated that fell under him
and Kenneth Sena with Public Works helped him. Citizen Eliaser Natividad asked about traps for cats.
Chief Bowman told him to call the City of Clovis and request traps. Once you catch one, call them to
come and empty the trap and take the cat or if he knows anyone who has a farm or dairy call and see if
they would want them. It is $6.50 to drop off an animal at the Animal Shelter in Clovis.

Ms. Harrison answered a question from Councilwomen Natividad and Askew regarding their
reservations for the MOLI meeting and motel. Ms. Harrison stated these had been done and that a
cancellation fee may be invoiced for the MOLI meeting as it is part of the New Mexico Municipal
Leagues rules.

Kenneth Sena, Public Works Supervisor, asked what EPCOR was responsible for with the sewer plant. He
stated that the last few days the aerators circulating the water were plugged and only half of one side
was working. If they were to stop working, it could cause the pond to become septic. Chief Bowman
stated that he would call Matt Meeks in the morning to see what was going on. Mr. Rutter asked if this
were something that could wait to be brought up during the January 23" meeting with EPCOR or if it
needed to be taken care of right a way. Mr. Sena stated now. Mr. Rutter stated this did need to be
brought up during the meeting with EPCOR.




P~ "
Missy Peacock stated that 1 s and W2’s would be going out this monti. .d that she would have the
paperwork for the council to fill out.

Karla Barela stated that everything was good with EPCOR billing issues and meter reads. EPCOR has
moved the meter reads back to help her with her billing.

Ms. Harrison spoke about the roof and HVAC system. Claiborne, WT Denton’s, and Special Ops have all
come out to look at the HVAC and they are waiting for an estimate from WT Dentons. As far as the roof
goes, they are having a tough time finding someone to look at a metal roof. Special Ops has looked at it
and Southwest Exteriors is supposed to come out. Councilman Autrey recommended we call Gary
Malone out of Grady.

Mayor Pro-Tem Carter adjourned the Regular meeting at 8:30 p.m. after a motion was made by
Councilman Autrey and seconded by Councilwoman Askew, motion passed 3-0

W 7%

Max Carter, Mayor Pro-Tem

Connie S. Harrison, City Clerk




